
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continuted…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr T Uren  
Direct Dial: (01257) 515122 
E-mail address: tony.uren@chorley.gov.uk 
Your Ref:  
Our Ref: TU/AJS 
Doc ID:  

Date: 26 May 2005  
 

Chief Executive: 
Jeffrey W Davies  MA LLM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 

 

A meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel is to be held in the Council Chamber, 

Town Hall, Chorley on Tuesday, 7th June, 2005 commencing at 6.30 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for Absence   

 
 2. Declarations of any Interests   

 
   

Members of the Committee are reminded of their responsibility to declare any personal 
interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest then the 
individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the room and not seek to influence a decision on the matter.  
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Community Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel held on 9 February 2005 (enclosed).  
 
The meeting of the Panel convened on 13 April 2005 was adjourned as inquorate.  
 

 4. Council's Timetable of Meetings   
 

  The Chair to receive the views of Members’ on the amount of meetings in the 
Council’s Timetable of meetings for 2005/06.  
 

 5. Inquiry into the Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley  (Pages 7 - 44) 
 

  To consider the draft report and recommendations of the Panel on its Scrutiny Inquiry 
into the provision of Youth Activities in the Borough, prior to its submission to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (enclosed).  
 

 6. Business Plans 2004/05 - Fourth Quarter Updates  (Pages 45 - 54) 
 

Town Hall
Market Street

Chorley
Lancashire
PR7 1DP

 



2 

  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting in November 2004, 
recommended each Overview and Scrutiny Panel to consider the Quarterly Updates of 
the Business Plans for the services and functions falling within their respective areas 
of responsibility. 
 
Accordingly, the 2004/05 Business Plan Updates for the period ending 31 March 2005 
in respect of the Economic Regeneration Unit and Leisure and Cultural Services Unit 
are enclosed for consideration.  
 

 7. Overview and Scrutiny Work Progamme  (Pages 55 - 56) 
 

  The updated Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2005/06, as agreed by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, is enclosed for information.  
 

 8. Any other item(s) which the Chairman decides is/are urgent.   
 

 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 

 

 

 

Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 

1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel for 

attendance. 

 

2. Agenda and reports to Deputy Chief Executive/Group Director, Head of Leisure and Cultural 

Services and Head of Economic Regeneration for attendance. 

 

3. Agenda and reports to Councillors J Wilson, Edgerley, Hoyle, Goldsworthy, Ball and Walker 

for information. 

 

4. Agenda and reports to all remaining Chief Officers and Assistant Head of Democratic 

Services for information. 

 

5. Agenda and reports to all remaining Members of the Council for information. 
 
 



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MINUTES/87617JM2 

9 FEBRUARY 2005 

 

 COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL  
9 February 2005 

 

Present:  Councillor Perks (Chairman) and Councillors Bedford, Culshaw, Mrs M Gray,  

Mrs M Lees, Mrs IE Smith and Whittaker. 
 
05.COP.04 APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE 

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Snow. 
 

05.CoP.05 MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel held 
on 5 January 2005 were confirmed as a correct record for signature by the 
Chairman. 
 

05.CoP.06 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN THE COUNCIL’S POLITICAL DECISION-MAKING 
PROCESS 
 
The Chief Executive presented a report seeking the Panel’s views and suggestions 
on the best means of taking forward new approaches to community engagement in 
the business of the Council. 
 
The report drew attention to the objectives in both the Council’s Corporate 
Improvement Plan adopted in June 2004 and the draft Community Strategy Action 
Plan for 2005/08 to ‘devise and pilot with partners new approaches to community 
engagement’ as a means of ‘getting people involved in their communities’, in the 
light of the Comprehensive Performance Assessment findings.  Consequently, the 
Chief Executive proposed to draw up proposals for the implementation of Area 
Forums in three pilot areas during September/October 2005.  The purpose of the 
report was to allow Panel Members the opportunity to voice their opinions on the 
form and operating practices to be applied to the proposed Forums in advance of 
firm proposals being drafted and presented to the Executive Cabinet and the 
Annual Meeting of the Council. 
 
In response, the Panel debated the concept of Area Forums and the following 
issues and suggestions were highlighted by the Chairman and Panel Members: 
 

• The size, format, operating practices and remit of the Forums, together with the 
areas to be covered by the bodies, were paramount factors to be taken into 
consideration. 

• The role and work of existing agencies and local organisations should not be 
duplicated or eroded by the proposed Forums. 

• One view expressed opposed a formal agenda format for Forum meetings, 
advocating an open forum discussion with the public able to question Cabinet 
Members.  Alternatively, the Forum meetings could be structured around an 
agreed agenda, with an opportunity allowed for an open discussion session. 

• One Member considered that the remit of rural area Forums should be 
restricted to individual Parish area boundaries. 

• The membership of the respective Forums should include at least one 
Executive Member, Ward Councillors, County Council representative(s), Parish 
Council representative(s) and the respective Community Beat Manager. 

• The participation and involvement of all relevant partner agencies and 
organisations (eg Police, Primary Care Trust, etc) would be essential. 

• The success of the pilot projects was dependant on  adequate and effective 
publicity and promotion. 

 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MINUTES/87617JM2 

9 FEBRUARY 2005 

 

At the conclusion of the debate, the Chairman reminded the Panel that the revised 
Community Safety Strategy for Chorley had identified four priority target areas (ie 
Chorley East Ward, Chorley South West Ward, Clayton Brook and Coppull).  The 
Chairman suggested that the Executive Cabinet might consider implementing pilot 
Area Forums structured on the basis of two distinct models (ie an Area Forum 
structured around a formal agenda and an Area Forum operated on an informal 
open debate basis).  The Chairman also recommended the Executive Cabinet to 
consider the four identified priority areas when selecting the districts to be covered 
by the pilot Area Forums. 
 
A Panel Member also favoured the establishment of an Area Forum in an 
appropriate rural part of the Borough. 
 
The Panel’s instructions were also sought on the instigation of a scrutiny inquiry 
into public participation in the Council’s decision-making process to investigate 
means by which the Council might effectively engage with the local community and 
key partners through, for example, Area Forums or Committees and the 
introduction of public speaking at Council and/or Committee meetings.  In this 
respect, the Panel was anxious to initiate the inquiry at this stage, as an 
opportunity to (i) monitor and take into account experience from both the proposed 
pilot Area Forums and Forums operated in neighbouring districts; and  
(ii) contribute to permanent arrangements that may subsequently be adopted 
through the inquiry’s findings and recommendations. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussions, it was AGREED: 

(1) That the intended proposal to recommend the Executive Cabinet and the 
Council to establish three Area Forum pilots on an experimental basis be noted. 
 
(2) That the Chief Executive be requested to take into account the views and 
suggestions of the Chairman and Panel members as expressed at the meeting and 
summarised above when preparing his report to the Executive Cabinet on the 
projected Pilot Area Forums. 
 
(3) That, in the interim, an inquiry project into public participation in the 
Council’s decision-making process be instigated on the basis, and within the terms, 
of the Inquiry Project Outline and accompanying documents attached to the 
submitted report. 

 

05.CoP.07 DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS AND BUSINESS PLANS FOR 2005/06 
 
The Panel’s views were sought on the draft budget proposals for 2005/06 in so far 
as they related to the Business Plans for the following services and functions which 
fell within the remit of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel: 
 

Housing Revenue Account; 
Economic Regeneration; 
Leisure and Cultural Services. 
 

The Panel had previously been supplied with copies of the draft budget plans and 
Business Plans for the respective Service Units, together with the Housing 
Revenue Account Business Plan. 
 

The Director of Finance explained the purpose of the consultation exercise, 
recommending Members to focus on the following aspects: 
 

• Would the objectives within the Business Plans achieve the Council’s 
corporate priorities? 

• Would the identified tasks ensure that the Plans’ objectives were met? 

• Were the Members satisfied with the content of the Business Plans and that 
sufficient emphasis was being placed on key tasks? 

Page 2



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MINUTES/87617JM2 

9 FEBRUARY 2005 

 

The respective Service Heads were invited to highlight the key tasks and broad 
thrust of their Business Plans.  In response, the following issues were emphasised: 
 
(a) Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
 
 The Head of Housing Services reminded the Panel that the Council had 

accepted the conclusions of the stock options appraisal and had authorised 
the pursuance of the large scale voluntary transfer of its housing stock as 
the best means of delivering a higher standard of accommodation for the 
Council’s housing tenants, improving service standards and increasing the 
supply of affordable housing in the Borough.  Accordingly, the stock transfer 
underpinned all the priorities within the Housing Revenue Account Business 
Plan and was implicit in the delivery of the following key service objectives: 

 

• to secure additional affordable housing for both sale and rent; 

• to reduce incidences of homelessness in the Borough; 

• to improve housing standards and the living environment throughout all 
neighbourhoods; 

• to support vulnerable people and enable customers to live in an 
environment of their choice. 

 
(b) Economic Regeneration Business Plan 
 
 The Head of Economic Regeneration outlined the following service 

objectives of her Unit to secure the economic regeneration of the Borough: 
 

• to protect and improve the natural and built surroundings to provide an 
attractive, accessible and sustainable environment; and 

• to promote the economic health and social well being of the Borough. 
 
 In particular, the Service Head emphasised the significance of the 

preparation of an economic development strategy for the Borough that 
would complement regional spatial strategies as a means of ensuring that 
the Borough played a role in the regeneration of the Central Lancashire 
region. 

 
(c) Leisure and Cultural Services Business Plan 
 
 The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services outlined the objectives of his 

Unit’s Business Plan to achieve an increase in cultural, sporting and 
community activities in order to promote well-being, creativity and 
involvement by young people and other non-traditional users and safer, 
more cohesive communities. 

 
 In particular, the Service Head highlighted his Unit’s efforts in encouraging 

both greater numbers of people to become involved in available activities 
and the development of partnership ventures with local organisations and 
groups. 

 
At the conclusion of the discussions, the Panel noted the Business Plans and draft 
budget proposals. 
 

O5.COP.08 
 

BUSINESS PLANS, 2004/05 - THIRD QUARTER UPDATES 

The Panel were reminded that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its 
meeting in November 2004, had recommended each Overview and Scrutiny body 
to consider the quarterly updates of the Business Plans for the services and 
functions falling within its respective area of responsibility. 
 

Page 3



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MINUTES/87617JM2 

9 FEBRUARY 2005 

 

Accordingly, the Panel had been supplied with the 2004/05 Business Plan updates 
for the period ending 31 December 2004 in respect of the Economic Regeneration 
Unit and the Leisure and Cultural Services Unit, measuring the Units’ performance 
against the respective Business Plans. 
 
The Panel noted that there had been no exceptions to the Economic Regeneration 
Business Plan during the monitoring period and the Head of Leisure and Cultural 
Services commented on the exceptions that had occurred on his Unit’s Business 
Plan during the period up to 31 December 2004.  The Members were pleased to 
note that the number of recorded visits to Astley Hall for the period up to  
31 December 2004 were in excess of the target figures and the total number of 
visits in 2002/03. 
 
The Business Plan updates were noted by the Panel. 
 

05.CoP.09 INQUIRY INTO THE PROVISION OF YOUTH ACTIVITIES IN CHORLEY 
 

(a) Presentation of findings of baseline survey 
  
 The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services gave a presentation on the 

findings from both the recent survey conducted to provide a baseline for the 
Panel’s inquiry into youth activities in the Borough and the earlier Strata 
Survey carried out in July 2001. 

 
 The inquiry questionnaire seeking the views of young people, 

parents/guardians and the providers of youth activities and appropriate 
venues had been widely distributed through, for example, schools, public 
buildings, clubs/groups and leisure centres, and had been available for 
electronic completion on the Council’s website.  The Service Head reported 
that, to date, 285 responses had been received and gave the Panel a 
snapshot analysis of the replies.  237 responses had been submitted from 
young people, 67% of which had been returned by 13 -16 year olds. 

 
 The survey findings had identified the range of activities in which young 

people currently participated, the most popular being music, swimming, 
dancing, football, cycling, fishing, horse riding and uniform group activities.  
The most popular aspirational activities for young people appeared to be 
finding a place to ‘chill’ without fear of being moved on, dancing, cinema 
going, climbing, off road cycling and water sports (eg canoeing etc).  A lack 
of information about available activities and events appeared to be the 
greatest obstacle to participation, with concerns at the lack of closely 
available facilities and time to pursue leisure activities also being identified 
as major barriers.  41% of young people had indicated an awareness of the 
Borough Council’s ’Get Up and Go’ initiative and 56% had confirmed a 
willingness to receive future information on activities . 

 
 52 responses had been received from organisations involved in the 

provision of youth activities (eg Schools, Youth Clubs, Sports/Arts/Action 
Groups, Parish Councils, Scouts/Uniform Groups, Community Centres, 
Millennium Green Committees, etc).  82% of the organisations had 
confirmed that their facilities were readily available for new members and 
78% wished to expand the current facilities on offer.  A lack of suitable 
volunteers and inadequate funding were identified by the organisations as 
the major barriers to the development of further opportunities for young 
people.  The organisations had also pointed out the inadequate promotion 
and publicity for available facilities, insufficient opportunities for the local use 
of educational facilities and the problems caused by prohibitive room hire 
charges. 

 

Page 4



COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL MINUTES/87617JM2 

9 FEBRUARY 2005 

 

 The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services’ presentation also highlighted the 
key messages that had been gleaned from the Strata Survey of all Year 9 
pupils throughout Lancashire conducted in July 2001.  While the survey had 
focused on sport, it had also encompassed the arts and other topics.  The 
findings specific to Chorley were compared to the findings relating to the 
Clusters area comprising the four districts of Chorley, Preston, South Ribble 
and West Lancashire.  The Service Head advised the Panel that a second 
Strata Survey had been carried out recently, the results of which were 
expected within the next few weeks. 

 
 The Chairman thanked the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services at the 

conclusion of the presentation for his informative address. 
 
(b) Next Steps 

 The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services advised the Panel that he would 
prepare for submission to a future meeting a detailed report on the findings 
of the baseline survey and the results of the second Strata Survey.  The 
report would need to be considered and assessed along with other findings 
and evidence presented to the Panel during (i) the presentations made at 
the last Panel meeting; (ii) the forthcoming visits to Bolton MBC and the 
Bolton Lads and Girls Club; and (iii) the planned tour of the Borough to meet 
young people.  The Panel would then be in a position to formulate 
conclusions and recommendations for incorporation into its draft final report. 

(c) Arrangements for Site Visits 

 
The Head of Customer, Democratic and Office Support Services informed 
the Members that the arrangements for the Panel and appropriate Offices to 
visit the Bolton MBC’s Education and Cultural Department for discussions 
with the Sports Development Manager on 17 February 2005 had been 
confirmed.  Following the discussions, the Members would be invited to 
inspect the facilities on offer for young people at the Bolton Lads and Girls 
Club. 

 
The Officer also reported, however, the need to re-arrange the tour of the 
Borough to meet and seek the views of young people, originally planned for 
23 February, in order to ensure the attendance of the Youth Involvement 
Officer. 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

Draft Final Report of the 

Community Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel into the Provision of Youth 

Activities in Chorley 

May 2005 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTENTS PAGE 
 
 Page Nos 
 
1. PREFACE 

 
1 
 

 
2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2 
 

 
3. INTRODUCTION 
 

 
4 

 
4. METHOD OF INVESTIGATION 
 

 
5 

 
5. FINDINGS 
 

 
7 

 
6. CONCLUSION AND DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
22 

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
24 

 
8. APPENDICES 

 
27 

 

Page 8



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. PREFACE 
 
1. Following a request by myself for a scrutiny inquiry into the provision of youth activities in 

Chorley, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested the Community Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel to conduct the Inquiry. 

 
2. The Inquiry has been undertaken over the past 8 months and I would like to express my 

gratitude to those members of the Panel who have demonstrated an enthusiastic 
commitment to the project and contributed so much to the Inquiry’s findings.  I am also 
indebted to each of the individuals and organisations who volunteered evidence to the Panel; 
all the persons who completed the baseline survey questionnaire; and Officers from the 
Leisure and Cultural Services Unit and the Democratic Services Section for their 
administrative support and advice. 

 
3. The conclusions and recommendations of the Panel are set out in the following pages of this 

report.  We have been impressed with the level of commitment and effort from all current 
service providers (eg Chorley Council’s Leisure and Cultural Services Unit, Lancashire 
County Council and numerous voluntary bodies and organisations) to the provision of 
facilities for sports, arts and cultural activities for young people throughout the community.  
We do not wish to detract or discourage the future work of these dedicated people in any 
way.  The overriding aim of our inquiry recommendations is to enhance and complement 
present efforts by helping to facilitate more effective co-ordination and co-operation, 
particularly between service providers and funding bodies, and to encourage maximisation of 
the use of current facilities. 

 
4. I consider that the inquiry has been worthwhile and I strongly commend these findings and 

recommendations for endorsement. 
 
 
Councillor Mark Perks 
Chair of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
 

 

 

Page 9



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 1. The Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel have conducted an investigation into the 

provision of youth activities in the Borough. 
 
 2. The terms of reference and aims and objectives of the scrutiny inquiry, together with 

the detailed findings of the Panel, are outlined in other relevant sections of this report. 
 
 3. Following a careful assessment of all the witnesses representations, documentary and 

verbal evidence presented and the outcome of Members’ visits, the Panel has 
compiled a number of recommendations for consideration, initially, by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  These recommendations, categorised to relate to the four 
original objectives of the inquiry, are set out below for ease of reference: 

 
 Objective 1 (To identify and explore the current provision of youth activities and facilities 

(including the roles of statutory and voluntary bodies) 
 
 1. All available services, activities, advice sources and training and vocational 

programmes through, for example, the Borough Council’s ‘Get Up and Go’ Programme 
and the Lancashire Youth and Community Service should be advertised and promoted 
as extensively and vigorously as possible. 

 
 2. The Lancashire County Council be requested to provide and/or support endeavours to 

establish dedicated ‘Youth Centres’ in local areas with advice and guidance to 
voluntary youth groups from the Borough Council. 

 
 3. The Council lobbies and encourages more extensive use of school facilities out of 

school hours for young people’s activities. 
 
 Objective 2 (To identify future issues highlighted by the Youth Service and other key 

partnerships (including the current Youth and Community Service Review) 
 
 4. The Council supports the establishment of a link between the web sites of the 

Lancashire County Youth and Community Services and the Borough Council to 
highlight information on available services and activities. 

 
 5. The Council aims to develop more effective links and liaison with Parish Councils on 

youth activities programmes and services and explores the potential for appropriate 
Parish Councils taking on the role of ‘Cultural Champions’ for the Borough. 

 
 6. The Panel recognises the valuable contribution a vibrant Youth Council makes to an 

area and recommends the Council to request the Lancashire County Council to 
develop a vibrant Chorley Youth Forum as a matter of urgency. 

 
 7. The Council to continue to encourage more local Groups to compile Development 

Policies to encourage young people’s activities and to enable them to qualify for 
available financial aid from a variety of sources. 

 
 Objective 3 (To compare with best practice elsewhere) 
 
 8. The Council explores the potential for the establishment of a ‘Chorley Lads and Girls 

Club’ by setting up a Working Group to assess the feasibility of the facility. 
 
 Objective 4 (To identify relevant issues relating to funding, budget and capacity) 
 
 9. The Council recommends and promotes better and more effective co-ordination 

between service delivery agents/bodies and funding sources. 

Page 10



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 10. The Panel recognises the need for the correct balance to be achieved between the 

direct provision and the sustainability of young people’s activities and services and 
recommends the Council to support all measures to achieve this goal through, for 
example, the encouragement of local groups to pursue volunteer training and 
development courses. 

 
 11. The Panel supports the Council’s commitment to its support of youth activities 

(evidenced by the growth item in the 2005/06 budget) and requests the Council to 
sustain its commitment to the provision of facilities for young person’s activities by 
continuing a budget provision in future years for a continued rolling programme of 
improvement.  This will enhance, but not replace, the activities and services provided 
by the Lancashire County Council and local voluntary groups throughout the 
community. 

 
 12. The Panel accepts the responsibility of parents/guardians to encourage their children to 

participate in activities, to participate themselves (whenever practicable) and to 
contribute (in whatever manner) to the resources required to stage the activities; and 
the Panel recommends the Council to examine means of promoting this principle. 

 
 

Page 11



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

3. INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 1. Background  
 
  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, through its application of the agreed selection 

criteria, approved a request from Councillor M Perks for a Scrutiny Inquiry into the 
provision of youth services throughout the Borough.  The definition was subsequently 
altered to the provision of youth activities throughout Chorley. 

 
 2. Terms of Reference 
 
  For the purposes of the inquiry, the Panel’s terms of reference were defined as follows: 
 
  (a) to conduct a scrutiny investigation into the provision of youth activities throughout 

the Chorley Borough in line with the parameters identified in the Topic Selection 
Assessment documents. 

 
  (b) To report the Inquiry’s findings and recommendations initially to the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee for consideration. 
 
 3. Aim and Objectives 
 
  The Panel’s aims and objectives of the inquiry were identified as follows: 
 
  (a) To identify and explore the current provision of youth activities and facilities 

(including the role of statutory and voluntary bodies). 
 
  (b) To identify relevant future issues highlighted by the Youth Service and other key 

partnerships (including the current Youth and Community Service Review). 
 
  (c) To compare with best practices elsewhere. 
 
  (d) To identify relevant issues relating to funding, budgets and capacity. 
 
 4. Inquiry Project Outline 
 
  The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline document which describes 

the scope and extent of the investigation is attached as Appendix B to this report. 
 
 5. Desired Outcome 
 
  The Panel hoped to achieve the production of a Multi-Agency Improvement Plan that 

achieves an increase in and improved use of the facilities available within the Borough. 
 
 6. General Information 
 
  Information on Chorley Borough Council’s overview and scrutiny policies and 

procedures can be found on the Council’s website at www.chorley.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 

Page 12



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

4. METHOD OF INVESTIGATION 
 
 1. Documentary Evidence 
 
  The Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel received and considered several reports 

and documents during its examination into youth activities in the Borough. 
 
  These documents included: 
 

  • the Youth Manifesto produced by the National Youth Agency in  September 2004; 
 

  • an overview of the role, functions and services provided by the Lancashire 
County Council Youth and Community Service in Chorley; 

 

  • the Young People’s Activities Questionnaire produced by the Borough Council to 
ascertain local residents’ views on the currently available services and their 
aspirations for the development of youth activities; 

 

  • a summary of the findings from both the Borough Council’s baseline survey and 
the Strata Survey carried out in July 2001; 

 

  • a report on the outcome of research surveys conducted on behalf of the 
Northwest Regional Development Agency between March and July 2004 into 
Year 9 students’ and adults’ participation in sport, the arts, physical and creative 
activities within Chorley; 

 

  • report of Preston City Council’s Regeneration, Community and Leisure Services 
Review Board’s study into the provision of services for children and young people; 

 

  • report of Maidstone Borough Council’s Cultural and Leisure Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee’s inquiry into services for young people. 

 
  The Scrutiny Inquiry Information Checklist (Appendix C) details the written documents 

assessed by the Panel. 
 
 2. Witnesses 
 
  The Panel, at its meeting on 5 January 2005, interviewed the following persons 

representing a number of authorities and organisations involved in the prevision of 
youth activities and services for young people: 

 

  • Mr L Boyer, Sports Development Officer in the Council’s Leisure and Cultural 
Services Unit; 

 

  • Mr G Murdoch, former District Team Manager with the LCC Youth and 
Community Service; 

 

  • Parish Councillor T Dickinson, a member of Chorley and District Sports Forum 
and Wheelton Parish Council; 

 

  • Ms M Graham, South Lancashire Arts Partnership; 
 

  • Mr I Fazakerley, Area Manager with Connexions Lancashire Limited; 
 

  • Mr H Kelly, Programme Manager with Groundwork Wigan and Chorley; 
 

  • Mr D Barry, Youth Development Manager with the Prince’s Trust. 

Page 13



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
  Each of the representatives gave a brief address on the extent of the services/activities 

provided by their respective organisations, and discussed with the Panel Members the 
perceived barriers to their organisations meeting the public’s increasing demand for 
leisure facilities. 

 
  A copy of the Scrutiny Inquiry Witness Checklist is attached to this report as Appendix D. 
 
 3. Research 
 
  A questionnaire, compiled by the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services, has been 

widely distributed and has been available on the Council’s website.  The survey aimed 
to create baseline information on currently available activities and facilities and to 
secure aspirations for the future. 

 
  In addition, the Panel has met Mr P Round, Head of Sport, Leisure and Inclusion 

Services, with Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council, and a number of his colleagues, 
together with Mr J Glover, Chief Executive of the Bolton Lads and Girls Club, to obtain 
their perspective on how the services provided by their organisation impacted on the 
local communities. 

 
  The Panel Members have also visited selected locations around the Borough to meet 

young people to ascertain their opinions on the youth activities currently available and 
their views and aspirations for the future development of youth services. 

 
 4. Panel Meetings 
 
  The minutes of each of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s meetings on  

7 October 2004, 18 November 2004, 5 January 2005 and 9 February 2005 are 
contained in this report collectively as Appendix J. 

 
 
 

Page 14



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

5
. 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

 O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

1
. 

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
y
o
u
th
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 o
f 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 b
o
d
ie
s
) 

A
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
, 
p
re
p
a
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
a
im
e
d
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

b
a
s
e
lin
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 T
h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 (
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 w
id
e
ly
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 

p
u
b
lic
 b
u
ild
in
g
s
, 
c
lu
b
s
/g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

 

2
3
7
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

6
7
%
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e
re
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 b
y
 1
3
 –
 1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 

T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 i
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
, 
th
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
o
p
u
la
r 
b
e
in
g
 m

u
s
ic
, 
s
w
im
m
in
g
, 
d
a
n
c
in
g
, 
fo
o
tb
a
ll,
 

c
y
c
lin
g
, 
fi
s
h
in
g
, 
h
o
rs
e
 r
id
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
n
if
o
rm

 g
ro
u
p
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
p
o
p
u
la
r 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 f
in
d
in
g
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 “
c
h
ill
” 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
fe
a
r 
o
f 
b
e
in
g
 m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
, 
d
a
n
c
in
g
, 
c
in
e
m
a
 g
o
in
g
, 

c
lim

b
in
g
, 
o
ff
 r
o
a
d
 c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
te
r 
s
p
o
rt
s
 (
e
g
 

c
a
n
o
e
in
g
 e
tc
).
  
A
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
n
ts
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
to
 b
e
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
o
b
s
ta
c
le
 

to
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 a
t 
th
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
lo
s
e
ly
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
im
e
 t
o
 p
u
rs
u
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 m

a
jo
r 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
. 
 4
1
%
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 a
n
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 “
G
e
t 
U
p
 a
n
d
 G
o
” 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 5
6
%
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

a
 w
ill
in
g
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 f
u
tu
re
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 8
 

 
 

 
 

 
P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 M
r 
L
 B
o
y
e
r,
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
in
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 U
n
it
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 a
re
 

p
ro
m
o
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 S
p
o
rt
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 

a
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
: 

•
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

fe
s
ti
v
a
ls
, 
e
tc
);
 

•
 

C
lu
b
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
(C
h
a
rt
m
a
rk
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
s
 c
lu
b
s
; 
a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
);
 

 

 

Page 15



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

•
 

C
o
a
c
h
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
(s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 a
re
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
);
 

•
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 (
h
o
lid
a
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
lu
b
s
, 
e
tc
);
 

•
 

U
n
d
e
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 G
ro
u
p
s
 (
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

b
la
c
k
 a
n
d
 A
s
ia
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
d
is
a
b
le
d
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
e
tc
);
 

•
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
lo
c
a
l 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 G
ro
u
p
s
 e
tc
; 

•
 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 r
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 o
n
 o
ff
e
r;
 

•
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 (
e
g
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 

G
a
m
e
s
 e
tc
) 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
 w
it
h
 M
s
 M
 G
ra
h
a
m
, 

S
o
u
th
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 A
rt
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
. 

T
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 A
rt
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
a
s
 s
e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 

in
s
ti
g
a
te
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
t 
lo
c
a
l 

c
lu
b
s
/g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 s
e
e
k
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
’s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 “
G
e
t 
U
p
 a
n
d
 G
o
” 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 f
ilm

 a
n
d
 d
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
n
d
 a
rt
 a
n
d
 

c
ra
ft
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 g
ra
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
A
w
a
rd
s
 f
o
r 
A
ll 
F
u
n
d
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 p
u
rs
u
in
g
 

th
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p
ilo
t 
A
ft
e
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
A
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 C
lu
b
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 o
f 
H
ig
h
fi
e
ld
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 w
h
ic
h
 

th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 h
o
p
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
lic
a
te
d
 i
n
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 

Page 16



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
 w
it
h
 M
r 
I 
F
a
z
a
k
e
rl
e
y
, 

A
re
a
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
it
h
 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 L
im
it
e
d
. 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 i
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
4
7
 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
2
. 
 T
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 1
3
 t
o
 1
9
 y
e
a
rs
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
A
d
v
is
o
rs
 o
n
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
m
a
tt
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
ff
e
rs
 a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 o
ff
ic
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 o
n
 j
o
b
 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
, 

c
a
re
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
s
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

m
a
y
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 (
e
g
 d
ru
g
 

a
b
u
s
e
, 
le
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 e
tc
).
 

 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 1
5
0
 1
6
 t
o
 

1
8
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
, 
in
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 w
it
h
 1
3
 t
o
 1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 

 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 p
la
c
e
s
 g
re
a
t 
im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 i
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
, 
w
it
h
 a
 P
A
Y
P
 t
h
re
e
 y
e
a
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
it
ti
n
g
 c
ri
m
e
s
. 
 C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 M
r 
H
 K
e
lly
, 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
t 

G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
 W

ig
a
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
: 

 •
 

C
o
re
 Y
o
u
th
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

P
ri
n
c
e
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
re
g
im
e
 (
1
2
 w
e
e
k
s
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
1
6
 t
o
 2
5
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
, 

w
it
h
 t
h
re
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 n
o
rm

a
lly
 

re
s
e
rv
e
d
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

 

Page 17



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

o
r 
lo
w
 s
k
ill
s
);
 

 
 

•
 

B
re
a
k
th
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 (
6
 w
e
e
k
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
1
4
 t
o
 1
6
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
, 
o
r 
a
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 v
e
rg
e
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
. 

•
 

1
2
 w
e
e
k
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 

h
a
rd
-t
o
-r
e
a
c
h
 g
ro
u
p
s
; 

•
 

U
p
 t
o
 t
h
re
e
-y
e
a
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
g
e
 o
f 
2
5
 y
e
a
rs
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

re
s
to
ra
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
b
e
n
e
fi
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

w
h
o
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 b
y
 M
r 
D
 B
a
rr
y
, 

Y
o
u
th
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
c
e
’s
 T
ru
s
t.
 

A
 Y
o
u
th
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
1
6
 t
o
 2
5
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
 i
s
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
ri
n
c
e
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 

G
ro
u
n
d
w
o
rk
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 g
a
in
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 a
n
d
 

p
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
m
 f
o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
a
m
 b
u
ild
in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
, 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
n
 C
V
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 j
o
b
 

in
te
rv
ie
w
 t
e
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
, 
e
tc
. 

 

 

Page 18



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
E
v
e
n
in
g
 t
o
u
r 
o
f 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 (
ie
 J
u
b
ile
e
 P
la
y
in
g
 

F
ie
ld
s
, 
A
d
lin
g
to
n
, 
A
d
lin
g
to
n
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 S
ta
ti
o
n
, 
T
a
tt
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
A
s
tl
e
y
 a
n
d
 

E
u
x
to
n
) 
o
n
 1
0
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
5
. 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
u
r 
w
a
s
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
m
 

to
 t
e
ll 
th
e
ir
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
re
a
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 

lik
e
 t
o
 s
e
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 
 T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

e
t 
th
a
t 
e
v
e
n
in
g
 c
a
n
 b
e
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
d
 

a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

•
 

J
u
b
ile
e
 P
la
y
in
g
 F
ie
ld
 a
n
d
 s
k
a
te
b
o
a
rd
 p
a
rk
 i
s
 n
o
t 

fl
o
o
d
lit
, 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
a
rk
 f
ro
m
 b
e
in
g
 u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
n
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 s
p
o
rt
s
 a
ft
e
r 
d
a
y
lig
h
t 
h
o
u
rs
. 

•
 

A
 y
o
u
th
 s
h
e
lt
e
r 
o
r 
fo
rm

a
l 
c
lu
b
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 s
k
a
te
b
o
a
rd
 p
a
rk
 s
u
rf
a
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
t 
in
 g
o
o
d
 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
t 
c
o
n
d
u
c
iv
e
 t
o
 a
n
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
, 
e
g
 s
k
a
te
b
o
a
rd
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
s
 e
tc
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
la
y
in
g
 f
ie
ld
s
 a
re
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y
 d
is
ta
n
t 
fr
o
m
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
o
 n
o
t 
g
iv
e
 r
is
e
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 f
ro
m
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
e
d
 d
o
 n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 v
is
it
 

th
e
 A
d
lin
g
to
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
, 
b
u
t 
s
a
id
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 

w
ill
in
g
 t
o
 v
is
it
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
t 
F
a
ir
v
ie
w
 F
a
rm

. 

•
 

T
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 
th
e
 R
a
ilw

a
y
 S
ta
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
n
y
th
in
g
 e
ls
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 
to
 d
o
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
n
d
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
fl
o
o
d
lit
 a
n
d
 i
t 
is
, 

th
e
re
fo
re
, 
u
n
s
a
fe
 t
o
 v
is
it
 t
h
e
m
 a
ft
e
r 
d
a
y
lig
h
t 
h
o
u
rs
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
o
u
ld
 p
re
fe
r 
to
 v
is
it
 w
a
rm

, 
w
e
ll 

lit
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 e
it
h
e
r 
p
la
y
 s
p
o
rt
s
, 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
rt
s
 a
n
d
 c
ra
ft
s
 o
r 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
o
r 

s
im
p
ly
 “
c
h
ill
 o
u
t”
 l
is
te
n
in
g
 t
o
 m

u
s
ic
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

w
e
e
k
d
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 a
t 
w
e
e
k
e
n
d
s
. 

 

R
1
. 

A
ll 
a
va
ila
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

a
c
tiv
iti
e
s
, 
a
d
vi
c
e
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 v
o
c
a
tio
n
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
, 

fo
r 
e
xa
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

‘G
e
t 
U
p
 a
n
d
 G
o
’ 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
d
ve
rt
is
e
d
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 a
s
 

e
xt
e
n
s
iv
e
ly
 a
n
d
 

vi
g
o
ro
u
s
ly
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

R
2
. 

T
h
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
b
e
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

a
n
d
/o
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
rs
 t
o
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 

‘Y
o
u
th
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
’ 
in
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

to
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 y
o
u
th
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

R
3
. 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
lo
b
b
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 

m
o
re
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 o
u
t 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
u
rs
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

Page 19



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
) 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

•
 

T
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 a
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 s
y
s
te
m
 

fo
r 
a
n
y
 c
lu
b
 t
o
 r
e
g
u
la
te
 e
n
tr
y
. 

•
 

Y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

fr
o
m
 a
ro
u
n
d
 5
.3
0
p
m
 u
n
ti
l 
8
.3
0
p
m
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 y
o
u
th
s
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
e
d
 a
re
 n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 

o
f 
a
n
y
 c
lu
b
, 
b
u
t 
d
o
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
lly
 v
is
it
 t
h
e
 c
in
e
m
a
s
 

a
t 
M
id
d
le
b
ro
o
k
. 

•
 

S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 “
G
e
t 
U
p
 a
n
d
 G
o
” 
le
a
fl
e
ts
 w
e
re
 

d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 a
t 
th
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 

•
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 u
n
a
w
a
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 “
G
e
t 
U
p
 a
n
d
 G
o
” 
lit
e
ra
tu
re
, 
b
u
t 
in
d
ic
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
s
p
e
c
t 
b
ro
c
h
u
re
s
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
 b
o
a
rd
. 

•
 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
  
p
u
p
ils
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 A
lb
a
n
y
 H
ig
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
w
h
ic
h
 d
id
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
y
 a
ft
e
r-
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

•
 

S
o
m
e
 y
o
u
th
s
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
a
lly
 a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 L
o
rd
 S
tr
e
e
t 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
. 

 

P
le
a
s
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4
 a
n
d
 8
. 

 
 

 
 

 
O
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
re
s
e
a
rc
h
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 o
n
 b
e
h
a
lf
 o
f 
th
e
 

N
o
rt
h
w
e
s
t 
R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 a
n
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
4
 i
n
to
 Y
e
a
r 
9
 

s
tu
d
e
n
ts
’ 
a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
’ 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
 a
rt
s
, 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

w
it
h
in
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 

T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
v
e
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
, 
th
e
 a
rt
s
, 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
n
d
 c
re
a
ti
v
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
. 
 M
o
re
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
, 
e
tc
. 
 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
u
c
h
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 c
o
m
p
a
re
s
 

fa
v
o
u
ra
b
ly
 w
it
h
 a
ll 
o
th
e
r 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 D
is
tr
ic
ts
. 

 

 

Page 20



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

 O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

2
. 

T
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
 

fu
tu
re
 

is
s
u
e
s
 
h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 
b
y
 

th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 
th
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
).
 

In
te
rv
ie
w
 
w
it
h
 
M
r 
G
 
M
u
rd
o
c
h
, 

fo
rm

e
r 
D
is
tr
ic
t 
T
e
a
m
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
it
h
 
th
e
 
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 
C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
Y
o
u
th
 
a
n
d
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 (
L
C
C
Y
C
S
) 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 w
id
e
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
in
fo
rm

a
l,
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 a
d
u
lt
s
 f
ro
m
 1
1
 t
o
 2
5
 y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
, 

th
e
 
a
rt
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 
in
 
a
 
w
id
e
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
im
s
 t
o
 

a
s
s
is
t 

y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
, 

th
ro
u
g
h
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
to
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
s
k
ill
s
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
p
ro
m
o
te
 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 

e
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
. 
 W

h
ile
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
im
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
s
, 
lim

it
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
e
in
g
 a
ff
o
rd
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
1
3
 –
 

1
9
 
y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 
s
o
c
ia
l 

e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
. 

 T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
 i
n
 

L
o
rd
 
S
tr
e
e
t,
 
C
h
o
rl
e
y
 
a
n
d
 
a
t 

C
la
y
to
n
-l
e
-W

o
o
d
s
, 

E
c
c
le
s
to
n
, 
C
o
p
p
u
ll,
 
in
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 a
t 
U
n
io
n
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a
n
d
 

s
e
v
e
ra
l 
o
th
e
r 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 
ru
n
 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
 
th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
w
it
h
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
P
la
n
s
’ 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 

b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
T
e
a
m
s
 o
f 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 

 T
h
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
w
ill
 
n
e
e
d
, 
in
 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 a
re
a
s
: 

 •
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 

•
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 
n
o
rt
h
 
e
a
s
te
rn
 
a
n
d
 
w
e
s
te
rn
 
p
a
rt
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
in
 
a
d
d
it
io
n
 
to
 
th
e
 
C
h
o
rl
e
y
 
to
w
n
 
c
e
n
tr
e
 

a
re
a
 (
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 S
o
u
th
 E
a
s
t 
W
a
rd
);
 

 

R
4
. 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

th
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

lin
k
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
th
e
 
w
e
b
 

s
it
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
Y
o
u
th
 

a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

h
ig
h
lig
h
t 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 
a
v
a
ila
b
le
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

P
le
a
s
e
 

a
ls
o
 

re
fe
r 

to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
1
, 
6
, 
9
 

a
n
d
 1
0
. 

Page 21



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

•
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 
(e
g
 
to
 
s
ti
m
u
la
te
 
th
e
 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

e
th
n
ic
 
m
in
o
ri
ty
 
a
n
d
 
d
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
d
 
g
ro
u
p
s
 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
);
 

•
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 
th
e
 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
c
a
lib
re
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
 w
it
h
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 

T
 D
ic
k
e
n
s
o
n
, 
a
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
S
p
o
rt
s
 

F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 W

h
e
e
lt
o
n
 P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

T
h
e
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a
n
d
 D
is
tr
ic
t 
S
p
o
rt
s
 F
o
ru
m
 i
s
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

a
u
to
n
o
m
o
u
s
 b
o
d
y
 t
h
a
t 
o
p
e
ra
te
s
 w
it
h
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
T
h
e
 F
o
ru
m
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 g
ro
u
p
s
, 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
lu
b
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 r
e
la
te
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
o
n
 p
e
rc
e
iv
e
s
 t
h
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
r 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
: 

•
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 i
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
; 

•
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 (
p
ro
h
ib
it
iv
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
ro
o
m
 

h
ir
e
 e
tc
);
 

•
 

in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
lin
k
s
 a
n
d
 d
u
a
l 
u
s
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
lu
b
s
/o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
; 

•
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
t 
a
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
l;
 

•
 

in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
Y
o
u
th
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
ie
s
 (
o
n
ly
 4
0
%
 

o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
S
p
o
rt
s
 C
lu
b
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
p
ile
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
is
it
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 t
h
a
t 
a
llo
w
s
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 b
e
 e
lig
ib
le
 

fo
r 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
L
o
tt
e
ry
 F
u
n
d
in
g
).
 

     

R
5
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
im
s
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m

o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

lin
k
s
 a
n
d
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 o
n
 

y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
lo
re
s
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
ils
 t
a
k
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

ro
le
 o
f 
“C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
” 
fo
r 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

R
6
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 

th
e
 v
a
lu
a
b
le
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 a
 v
ib
ra
n
t 

Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
k
e
s
 

to
 a
n
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
th
e
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 

v
ib
ra
n
t 
C
h
o
rl
e
y
 Y
o
u
th
 

F
o
ru
m
 a
s
 a
 m

a
tt
e
r 
o
f 

u
rg
e
n
c
y
. 

 

Page 22



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
ic
k
e
n
s
o
n
 a
ls
o
 d
re
w
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ro
le
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils
 c
o
u
ld
 f
u
lf
il 
o
n
 y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
y
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 

W
h
e
e
lt
o
n
 

P
a
ri
s
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 
p
e
o
p
le
 
to
 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 
in
 

s
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 a
rt
s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 (
e
g
 f
e
ll 
w
a
lk
in
g
, 

s
w
im
m
in
g
, 
tr
ia
th
lo
n
 e
v
e
n
ts
, 
e
tc
).
 

 R
7
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

m
o
re
 l
o
c
a
l 
G
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 

c
o
m
p
ile
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
o
lic
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
m
 t
o
 q
u
a
lif
y
 f
o
r 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
id
 

fr
o
m
 a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

P
le
a
s
e
 

a
ls
o
 

re
fe
r 

to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
, 
2
, 
3
, 

1
0
, 
1
1
 a
n
d
 1
2
. 

 
 

 
 

3
. 

T
o
 c
o
m
p
a
re
 w
it
h
 b
e
s
t 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
. 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 o
f 
o
th
e
r 
A
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 i
n
to
 o
r 
re
v
ie
w
s
 

o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
re
c
e
iv
e
d
, 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
, 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
P
re
s
to
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 L
e
is
u
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 s
tu
d
y
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
M
a
id
s
to
n
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
’s
 

in
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 M
r 
P
 R
o
u
n
d
, 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
p
o
rt
, 
L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 B
o
lt
o
n
 

M
e
tr
o
p
o
lit
a
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 

a
n
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
is
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 

o
n
 1
7
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
5
. 

“P
o
s
it
iv
e
 F
u
tu
re
s
” 
(a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 H
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
 

D
ru
g
s
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
) 
is
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 “
M
o
v
in
g
 U
p
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
 

L
e
is
u
re
” 
(M

U
T
L
),
 a
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 B
o
lt
o
n
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
re
 

D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 M
U
T
L
 T
e
a
m
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 b
ro
a
d
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
g
e
d
 

1
0
 -
 1
9
 y
e
a
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
ft
e
r 

b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 o
r 
a
re
 a
t 
ri
s
k
. 

 

 

Page 23



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
e
lp
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
y
: 

•
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
, 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
; 

•
 

a
s
s
is
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ju
v
e
n
ile
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
, 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
; 

•
 

re
-i
n
te
g
ra
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 

T
h
e
 M
U
T
L
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
: 

•
 

a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
e
v
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
o
lid
a
y
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 

c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 u
p
 t
o
 8
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
ie
ld
s
; 

•
 

a
 v
a
ri
e
ty
 o
f 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
, 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 

•
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
/v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
’ 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r
o
le
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 T
a
s
k
 G
ro
u
p
 w
a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
, 
5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

e
x
te
rn
a
lly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 w
o
rk
s
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
ly
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

to
 a
v
o
id
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
e
ff
o
rt
 a
n
d
, 
p
ri
n
c
ip
a
lly
, 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 o
r 
s
e
v
e
re
ly
 a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
 T
h
e
 

G
ro
u
p
, 
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
e
a
m
s
 o
f 
a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
s
 t
h
e
 “
h
a
rd
 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
” 
g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
im
 o
f 
g
u
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m

a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
, 

g
e
n
e
ri
c
 s
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
 T
h
e
 J
u
v
e
n
ile
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 T
e
a
m
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
te
rn
a
lly
 f
u
n
d
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
 s
h
o
rt
ly
 t
o
 e
x
p
ir
e
. 

    

 

Page 24



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
o
lt
o
n
 M
B
C
 i
s
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

M
U
T
L
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
: 

•
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s
p
o
rt
, 

p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
; 

•
 

s
o
c
ia
l 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
; 

•
 

a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
, 
ju
v
e
n
ile
 n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
V
is
it
 t
o
 B
o
lt
o
n
 L
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 G
ir
ls
 

C
lu
b
 a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 i
ts
 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 
M
r 
T
 G
lo
v
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 C
lu
b
, 
c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 B
o
lt
o
n
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
, 
is
 p
ro
u
d
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
is
ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg
e
s
t 
y
o
u
th
 c
lu
b
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
tr
y
, 
b
e
in
g
 c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
n
g
 u
p
 t
o
 2
5
0
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
t 
a
n
y
 o
n
e
 t
im
e
, 
w
it
h
 a
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f 

a
ro
u
n
d
 2
,5
0
0
. 
 A
 m

in
im
a
l 
4
0
p
 e
n
tr
a
n
c
e
 f
e
e
 i
s
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 a
d
m
it
ta
n
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 e
n
ti
tl
e
s
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
ll 
th
e
 C
lu
b
’s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly
 w
e
ll-
e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 g
y
m
n
a
s
iu
m
, 
fo
r 
w
h
ic
h
 a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
fe
e
 i
s
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 C
lu
b
 o
p
e
n
s
 e
a
c
h
 d
a
y
, 
w
it
h
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 o
p
e
n
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid
a
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 n
e
w
 B
o
lt
o
n
 L
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 G
ir
ls
 C
lu
b
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 i
ts
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2
0
0
2
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a
id
 o
f 
S
p
o
rt
s
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 

a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
L
o
tt
e
ry
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
B
o
lt
o
n
 B
o
y
s
 

C
lu
b
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1
9
8
9
. 

 T
h
e
 C
lu
b
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
p
o
rt
s
 

a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 l
a
rg
e
 m

u
lt
i-
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

s
p
o
rt
s
 h
a
ll;
 a
 c
a
fé
 a
n
d
 “
c
h
ill
in
g
 o
u
t”
 a
re
a
 (
w
it
h
 T
V
, 
p
o
o
l 

ta
b
le
s
, 
e
tc
);
 a
 d
a
n
c
e
/c
lim

b
in
g
 w
a
ll 
s
tu
d
io
; 
a
 b
o
x
in
g
 h
a
ll;
 

fu
lly
 e
q
u
ip
p
e
d
 g
y
m
n
a
s
iu
m
; 
B
o
a
rd
 r
o
o
m
 a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 
a
n
d
 a
n
 a
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
a
s
tr
o
-t
u
rf
 f
o
o
tb
a
ll 

p
it
c
h
. 

 

R
8
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
e
x
p
lo
re
s
 

th
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

“C
h
o
rl
e
y
 L
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 

G
ir
ls
 C
lu
b
” 
b
y
 s
e
tt
in
g
 

u
p
 a
 W

o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 

o
f 
th
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty
. 

Page 25



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
h
e
 C
lu
b
 i
s
 o
p
e
ra
te
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 c
h
a
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 B
o
a
rd
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
to
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 C
lu
b
 

e
m
p
lo
y
s
 a
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
0
 

fu
ll-
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 6
0
 p
a
rt
-t
im
e
 s
ta
ff
; 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
o
v
e
r 
2
0
0
 a
c
ti
v
e
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
e
rv
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
lu
b
’s
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
1
0
0
 m

e
n
to
rs
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 o
n
e
-t
o
-o
n
e
 c
o
u
n
s
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
o
c
ia
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 

 O
n
e
 m

e
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 i
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 m

e
th
o
d
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

w
id
e
s
p
re
a
d
 l
e
a
fl
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 p
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
. 
 E
a
c
h
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
is
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
n
 8
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
, 
id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 

o
c
c
u
rr
e
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 a
b
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
n
d
lin
g
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 B
o
lt
o
n
 L
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 G
ir
ls
 C
lu
b
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 £
1
.3
m
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p
ri
n
c
ip
a
lly
 b
y
 

H
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
 a
n
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
L
o
tt
e
ry
 g
ra
n
ts
, 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
d
o
n
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
B
o
lt
o
n
 M
B
C
 f
u
n
d
in
g
, 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
 r
a
is
in
g
 e
v
e
n
ts
. 

 

 

 

Page 26



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

 O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
 

 
 

4
. 

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

fu
n
d
in
g
, 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

B
a
s
e
lin
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 d
is
tr
ib
u
te
d
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 c
o
m
p
ile
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

5
2
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 in
vo
lv
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
vi
s
io
n
 o
f 
yo
u
th
 a
c
tiv
iti
e
s
. 
(e
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
Y
o
u
th
 

C
lu
b
s
, 
S
p
o
rt
s
/A
rt
s
/A
c
tio
n
 G
ro
u
p
s
, 
P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
, 

S
c
o
u
ts
/U
n
ifo
rm

 G
ro
u
p
s
, 
C
o
m
m
u
n
ity
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
M
ill
e
n
n
iu
m
 

G
re
e
n
 C
o
m
m
itt
e
e
s
 e
tc
).
  
8
2
%
 o
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 

c
o
n
fir
m
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
 a
re
 r
e
a
d
ily
 a
va
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 7
8
%
 w
is
h
e
d
 t
o
 e
xp
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

fa
c
ili
tie
s
 o
n
 o
ff
e
r.
  
A
 la
c
k
 o
f 
s
u
ita
b
le
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 w
a
s
 id
e
n
tif
ie
d
 b
y 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 

a
s
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
r 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
ve
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 f
o
r 
yo
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 
 T
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio
n
s
 h
a
d
 

a
ls
o
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 p
ro
m
o
tio
n
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
ity
 

fo
r 
a
va
ila
b
le
 f
a
c
ili
tie
s
, 
in
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
iti
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

lo
c
a
l u
s
e
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
tio
n
a
l f
a
c
ili
tie
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b
y 
p
ro
h
ib
iti
ve
 r
o
o
m
 h
ir
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
 w
it
h
 M
r 
L
 B
o
y
e
r,
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

S
p
o
rt
s
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r.
 

T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 U
n
it
 h
o
p
e
s
 

to
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 i
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
y
: 

•
 

c
lo
s
e
r 
c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
; 

•
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 C
y
c
lo
 

C
ro
s
s
 P
ro
je
c
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
o
u
th
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 A
rt
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
; 

•
 

C
o
a
c
h
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
(s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
a
c
h
e
s
 a
re
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 t
ra
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
);
 

 T
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
b
a
rr
ie
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
: 

•
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 

•
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
k
ill
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
; 

•
 

fi
n
it
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

R
.9
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
m
o
te
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 

m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

a
g
e
n
ts
/b
o
d
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

R
.1
0
 T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

c
o
rr
e
c
t 
b
a
la
n
c
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
  

Page 27



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
  

 
 

 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
ll 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 

th
is
 g
o
a
l 
th
ro
u
g
h
, 
fo
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
th
e
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
g
ro
u
p
s
 t
o
 p
u
rs
u
e
 

v
o
lu
n
te
e
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
c
o
u
rs
e
s
. 

 
P
le
a
s
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3
, 
5
, 
6
 

a
n
d
 1
2
. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
In
te
rv
ie
w
 w
it
h
 M
s
 M
 G
ra
h
a
m
, 

S
o
u
th
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 A
rt
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
h
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
s
: 

•
 

in
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
/p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
; 

•
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
in
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 v
e
n
u
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 

•
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
iv
e
 t
o
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 (
e
g
 b
a
ll 
g
a
m
e
s
 e
tc
).
 

 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 2
, 
3
, 
5
, 

9
 a
n
d
 1
0
. 

 
 

 
 

 
G
ro
u
p
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
n
 5
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
5
 w
it
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 k
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
: 

•
 

In
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 p
ro
h
ib
it
iv
e
 h
ir
e
 

c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
h
a
lls
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
p
p
e
a
r 
to
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
t 

th
e
 g
re
a
te
s
t 
o
b
s
ta
c
le
s
 t
o
 e
a
c
h
 b
o
d
y
’s
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 

p
la
n
s
. 

W
h
ils
t 
it
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
th
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
la
c
e
s
 g
re
a
t 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 i
ts
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
n
to
 i
ts
 d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 p
o
w
e
r 
to
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 

R
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 

to
 i
ts
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
y
o
u
th
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 (
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

g
ro
w
th
 i
te
m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2
0
0
5
/0
6
 

b
u
d
g
e
t)
 a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 s
u
s
ta
in
 i
ts
 

c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
y
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 f
o
r 

Page 28



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
rs
 f
o
r 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
o
p
e
s
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 S
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 G
ro
u
p
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
w
o
 p
u
p
ils
 f
ro
m
 e
a
c
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
),
 a
s
 a
 m

e
a
n
s
 o
f 

a
s
c
e
rt
a
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
in
io
n
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

ty
p
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
h
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 w
is
h
 t
o
 s
e
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 

 
T
h
e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
g
u
id
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 

s
p
o
rt
, 
p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
, 
a
c
a
d
e
m
ic
, 
c
ra
ft
 o
r 
c
u
lt
u
ra
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
re
 m

u
lt
it
u
d
e
. 
 I
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
ju
v
e
n
ile
 

n
u
is
a
n
c
e
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a
 

m
o
re
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
if
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 H
a
lls
 m

o
re
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
th
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 (
e
g
 e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

d
u
a
l 
u
s
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 A
ft
e
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
C
lu
b
s
 e
tc
) 
a
t 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 c
o
s
t 
is
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
. 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
d
u
a
l 
u
s
e
 o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te
ly
 o
w
n
e
d
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 

c
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
. 

•
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
h
e
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C
o
u
n
ty
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
ils
 i
s
 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
lo
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
 T
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

m
ig
h
t 
a
ls
o
 b
e
 e
x
a
m
in
e
d
. 

A
 n
e
w
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 Y
o
u
th
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
h
e
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 T
o
w
n
 D
e
ta
c
h
e
d
 W

o
rk
 T
e
a
m
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 E
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
 

W
e
s
t 
W
a
rd
s
. 

a
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
  
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 

re
p
la
c
e
, 
th
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

R
1
2
. 
T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
a
c
c
e
p
ts
 t
h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

p
a
re
n
ts
/g
u
a
rd
ia
n
s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 t
o
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 

in
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
, 
to
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 

(w
h
e
n
e
v
e
r 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
b
le
) 

a
n
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 (
in
 

w
h
a
te
v
e
r 
m
a
n
n
e
r)
 t
o
 

th
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

to
 s
ta
g
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 

m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 

th
is
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
. 

P
le
a
s
e
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 3
, 

4
, 
5
, 
8
, 
9
 a
n
d
 1
0
. 

Page 29



 
 

 

A
D
M
IN
G
E
N
/8
8
9
9
0
A
J
S
 

O
B

J
E
C

T
IV

E
/K

E
Y
 I
S
S
U

E
S
 

E
V
ID

E
N

C
E
 

(B
ri

e
f 
C

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S
 

D
R

A
F
T
 

R
E
C

O
M

M
E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S
 

 

 

Page 30



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

6. CONCLUSION AND DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 After taking account of all the documentary and verbal evidence presented and the outcome 

of the visit to Bolton and tour of selected locations within the Borough to speak to young 
people, the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel has identified a number of proposals, 
measures and initiatives which, if implemented, the Members consider will enhance the 
current opportunities for sport, leisure and cultural activities for young residents of the 
Borough and help to build the foundation for a sustained improvement of service. 

 
 The considered recommendations of the Panel are set out below, with an indication of the 

financial implications, where appropriate. 
 
 Objective 1 (To identify and explore the current provision of youth activities and facilities 

(including the roles of statutory and voluntary bodies) 
 
 1. All available services, activities, advice sources and training and vocational 

programmes through, for example, the Borough Council’s ‘Get Up and Go’ Programme 
and the Lancashire Youth and Community Service should be advertised and promoted 
as extensively and vigorously as possible. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 2. The Lancashire County Council be requested to provide and/or support endeavours to 

establish dedicated ‘Youth Centres’ in local areas with advice and guidance to 
voluntary youth groups from the Borough Council. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 3. The Council lobbies and encourages more extensive use of school facilities out of 

school hours for young people’s activities. 
 
  NO FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 Objective 2 (To identify future issues highlighted by the Youth Service and other key 

partnerships (including the current Youth and Community Service Review) 
 
 4. The Council supports the establishment of a link between the web sites of the 

Lancashire County Youth and Community Services and the Borough Council to 
highlight information on available services and activities. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 5. The Council aims to develop more effective links and liaison with Parish Councils on 

youth activities programmes and services and explores the potential for appropriate 
Parish Councils taking on the role of ‘Cultural Champions’ for the Borough. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 6. The Panel recognises the valuable contribution a vibrant Youth Council makes to an 

area and recommends the Council to request the Lancashire County Council to 
develop a vibrant Chorley Youth Forum as a matter of urgency. 

 
  NO FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
   
 
 

Page 31



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 7. The Council to continue to encourage more local Groups to compile Development 

Policies to encourage young people’s activities and to enable them to qualify for 
available financial aid from a variety of sources. 

 
  NO FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 Objective 3 (To compare with best practice elsewhere) 
 
 8. The Council explores the potential for the establishment of a ‘Chorley Lads and Girls 

Club’ by setting up a Working Group to assess the feasibility of the facility. 
 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 Objective 4 (To identify relevant issues relating to funding, budget and capacity) 
 
 9. The Council recommends and promotes better and more effective co-ordination 

between service delivery agents/bodies and funding sources. 
 
  NO FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 10. The Panel recognises the need for the correct balance to be achieved between the 

direct provision and the sustainability of young people’s activities and services and 
recommends the Council to support all measures to achieve this goal through, for 
example, the encouragement of local groups to pursue volunteer training and 
development courses. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 11. The Panel supports the Council’s commitment to its support of youth activities 

(evidenced by the growth item in the 2005/06 budget) and requests the Council to 
sustain its commitment to the provision of facilities for young person’s activities by 
continuing a budget provision in future years for a continued rolling programme of 
improvement.  This will enhance, but not replace, the activities and services provided 
by the Lancashire County Council and local voluntary groups throughout the 
community. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 12. The Panel accepts the responsibility of parents/guardians to encourage their children to 

participate in activities, to participate themselves (whenever practicable) and to 
contribute (in whatever manner) to the resources required to stage the activities; and 
the Panel recommends the Council to examine means of promoting this principle. 

 
  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION 
 
 

Page 32



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 The estimated financial implications of each of the Panel’s recommendations are shown 

below: 
 
 Objective 1 (To identify and explore the current provision of youth activities and facilities 

(including the roles of statutory and voluntary bodies) 
 
 1. All available services, activities, advice sources and training and vocational 

programmes through, for example, the Borough Council’s ‘Get Up and Go’ Programme 
and the Lancashire Youth and Community Service should be advertised and promoted 
as extensively and vigorously as possible. 

 
 
 
 
 
 2. The Lancashire County Council be requested to provide and/or support endeavours to 

establish dedicated ‘Youth Centres’ in local areas with advice and guidance to 
voluntary youth groups from the Borough Council. 

 
 
 
 
 
 3. The Council lobbies and encourages more extensive use of school facilities out of 

school hours for young people’s activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Objective 2 (To identify future issues highlighted by the Youth Service and other key 

partnerships (including the current Youth and Community Service Review) 
 
 4. The Council supports the establishment of a link between the web sites of the 

Lancashire County Youth and Community Services and the Borough Council to 
highlight information on available services and activities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 5. The Council aims to develop more effective links and liaison with Parish Councils on 

youth activities programmes and services and explores the potential for appropriate 
Parish Councils taking on the role of ‘Cultural Champions’ for the Borough. 

 
 
 
 

Page 33



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 6. The Panel recognises the valuable contribution a vibrant Youth Council makes to an 

area and recommends the Council to request the Lancashire County Council to 
develop a vibrant Chorley Youth Forum as a matter of urgency. 

 
 
 
 
 
 7. The Council to continue to encourage more local Groups to compile Development 

Policies to encourage young people’s activities and to enable them to qualify for 
available financial aid from a variety of sources. 

 
 
 
 
 
 Objective 3 (To compare with best practice elsewhere) 
 
 8. The Council explores the potential for the establishment of a ‘Chorley Lads and Girls 

Club’ by setting up a Working Group to assess the feasibility of the facility. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Objective 4 (To identify relevant issues relating to funding, budget and capacity) 
 
 9. The Council recommends and promotes better and more effective co-ordination 

between service delivery agents/bodies and funding sources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 10. The Panel recognises the need for the correct balance to be achieved between the 

direct provision and the sustainability of young people’s activities and services and 
recommends the Council to support all measures to achieve this goal through, for 
example, the encouragement of local groups to pursue volunteer training and 
development courses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 11. The Panel supports the Council’s commitment to its support of youth activities 

(evidenced by the growth item in the 2005/06 budget) and requests the Council to 
sustain its commitment to the provision of facilities for young person’s activities by 
continuing a budget provision in future years for a continued rolling programme of 
improvement.  This will enhance, but not replace, the activities and services provided 
by the Lancashire County Council and local voluntary groups throughout the 
community. 

 
 
 
 

Page 34



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 12. The Panel accepts the responsibility of parents/guardians to encourage their children to 

participate in activities, to participate themselves (whenever practicable) and to 
contribute (in whatever manner) to the resources required to stage the activities; and 
the Panel recommends the Council to examine means of promoting this principle. 

 

Page 35



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

8. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix A  Acknowledgements 
 
 
 Appendix B  Inquiry Project Outline 
 
 
 Appendix C Scrutiny Inquiry Witness Checklist 
 
 
 Appendix D Scrutiny Inquiry Information Checklist 
 
 
 Appendix E  The Youth Manifesto produced by the National Youth 

Agency in September 2004. 
 
 
 Appendix F  An overview of the role, functions and services provided by 

the Lancashire County Council Youth and Community 
Service in Chorley. 

 
 
 Appendix G A copy of the Borough Council’s Young People’s Activities 

Questionnaire. 
 
 
 Appendix H A summary of the findings from both the baseline survey 

and the Strata Survey carried out in July 2001. 
 
 
 Appendix I  Report on outcome of research surveys conducted on 

behalf of the Northwest Regional Development Agency 
between March and July 2004 into Year 9 students’ and 
adults’ participation in sports, the arts, physical and creative 
activities within Chorley. 

 
 
 Appendix J  Minutes of Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

meetings held on 7 October and 18 November 2004 and 5 
January and 9 February 2005. 

Page 36



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

APPENDIX A 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
 
The Chairman of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel (Councillor M Perks) wishes to 
acknowledge the work, research and/or evidence of the following persons and organisations, all of 
which have contributed in some way to the inquiry. 
 
 
 
Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Councillor M Perks (Chairman)  Councillor Mrs M Gray 
Councillor N Baxter  Councillor Mrs M Lees 
Councillor T Bedford  Councillor Mrs I E Smith 
Councillor P Buckley  Councillor C Snow 
Councillor F Culshaw  Councillor A Whittaker 
 
 
Office Support 
 
Mr J Carson - Head of Leisure and Cultural Services 
PC W Sharp - Youth Involvement Officer with the Community Safety 

Team. 
Mr A Uren - Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 
Witnesses 
 
Mr L Boyer - Chorley Borough Council’s Sports Development Officer 
Mr G Murdoch - Former District Team Manager with the Lancashire County 

Council Youth and Community Service. 
Parish Councillor T Dickinson - Chorley and District Sports Forum and Wheelton Parish 

Council. 
Ms M Graham - South Lancashire Arts Partnership. 
Mr I Fazakerley - Area Manager, Connexions Lancashire Limited. 
Mr H Kelly - Programme Manager, Groundwork Wigan and Chorley. 
Mr D Barry - Youth Development Manager, Prince’s Trust. 
 
 
 
Contributors to Research 
 
All respondents to the Borough Council’s questionnaire to establish baseline data on currently 
available activities and facilities for young people and to ascertain views and aspirations for the 
future development of the service. 
 
Mr P Round, Bolton  Metropolitan Borough Council’s Head of Sport, Leisure and Inclusion Services 
and colleagues. 
 
Mr J Glover, Chief Executive of Bolton Lads and Girls Club. 
 
Each of the young persons who spoke to the Panel Members on the Panel’s tour of selected 
locations on 10 March 2005. 

Page 37



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY PROJECT OUTLINE 
 

 

Review Topic:  Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley 
 

Investigation by:  Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 Type:  Scrutiny Inquiry 
 

  

Objectives:   
 
1. To identify and explore the current provision of 

youth services and facilities (including statutory 
and voluntary bodies). 

 
2. To identify relevant future issues highlighted by 

the Youth Service and other key partnerships 
(including the current Youth and Community 
Service Review). 

 
3. To compare with best practice elsewhere. 
 
4. To identify relevant issues relating to funding, 

budgets and capacity. 
 

Desired Outcomes:   
 
The production of a Multi-Agency Improvement Plan that 
achieves an increase in and improved use of the facilities 
available within the Borough. 
 

  

Terms of Reference:   
 
1) To conduct a scrutiny investigation into the provision of youth services throughout the Chorley Borough in 

line with the parameters identified in the Topic Selection Assessment document. 
 
2) To report the inquiry’s findings and recommendations initially to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

  

Key Issues:  
 
� Nature and scale of current provision of 

services and facilities. 
� Current deficiencies in services and facilities. 
� Effectiveness, or otherwise, of partnership 

working. 
� Good Practice elsewhere. 
� Identification of differing methods of working 

with young people. 
� Identification of duplication of provision of 

services and facilities. 

Risks:   
 
� Resource implications. 
� Difficulties in securing information and co-operation. 
� Raising expectations beyond capacity to deliver. 
 
 
 

  

Venue(s):   Timescale:  8 months. 

Town Hall, Chorley; agreed site visits to service providers Start:  October 2004 

 Finish:  End of 2004/05 Municipal Year 

APPENDIX B 

Page 38



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 

Information Requirements and Sources: 
 

     Documents/evidence: (what/why?) 
 
� Audit of current services and facilities provided by Lancashire County Youth and Community Service; Chorley 

Council’s Leisure and Cultural Services Unit; and other providers. 
 

     Witnesses: (who, why?) 
 
� Officers from Lancashire County Youth and Community Services and Chorley Council’s Leisure and Cultural 

Services Unit 
� South Lancashire Arts Partnership 
� Youth Leaders 
� Organisations to be determined at conclusion of initial audit 
 
     Consultation/Research: (what, why, who?) 
 
To conduct a baseline survey and audit of current services and facilities and to ascertain aspirations for 
improvement and/or expansion of services, entailing consultation with: 
 
� Lancashire County Council Youth and Community Service; 
� Connexions 
� South Lancashire Arts Partnership; 
� Chorley Council’s Leisure and Cultural Services Unit; 
� Chorley Borough Councillors; 
� Parish Councils; 
� Local Schools; 
� Sports and Youth Clubs operating in Chorley; 
� Air Training Corps and Army Cadet Corps; 
� Muslim Welfare Society and other ethnic minority groups; 
� Other appropriate Community organisations 
 
      Site Visits: (where, why, when?) 
 
� Appropriate Local Authorities (to examine best practice) 
� Appropriate Parish Councils 
� Other visits to be determined at later stage 

 

Likely Budget Requirements: 
 

  Purpose                                           £ 
 
 Operation of site visits etc              500 
 
   Total                                             500 
 

Officer Support: 
 
Lead Officer:  Mr J Carson, Head of Leisure and 
Cultural Services 
 
Committee Administrator:  Mr A Uren, Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
Corporate Policy Officer:  To be determined 
 

   

 

Target Body
1
 for Findings/Recommendations  

(Eg Executive Cabinet, Council, PCT) 
 
Executive Cabinet, following endorsement by Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

                                                
 

Page 39



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

APPENDIX C 

 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY WITNESS CHECKLIST 
 

 

Name of Inquiry:  Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley 
 

Scrutiny Body:  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 
Ref. 

 
Witness 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
1 
 
 

Mr L Boyer, Sports 
Development Officer, 
Chorley Council, 
Leisure & Cultural 
Services Unit 

Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

5/1/2005 Town Hall, Chorley 

 
2 
 
 

Mr G Murdoch, Chorley 
Team Leader, 
Lancashire County 
Council Youth and 
Community Services 

Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

5/1/2005 Town Hall, Chorley 

 
3 
 
 

Mr T Dickenson 
(Wheelton Parish 
Council/Chorley Sports 
Forum) 

Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

5/1/2005 Town Hall, Chorley 

 
4 
 
 

Ms M Graham (South 
Lancashire Arts 
Partnership) 

Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

5/1/2005 Town Hall, Chorley 

 
5 
 
 

Mr I Fazakerley, Area 
Manager, Connexions 
Lancashire Ltd 

Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

5/1/2005 Town Hall, Chorley 

Page 40



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 

 
Ref. 

 
Witness 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
6 
 
 

 
Mr H Kelly, Programme 
Manager, Groundwork 
Wigan and Chorley 
 
Mr D Barry, Youth 
Development Manager 
with the Prince’s Trust 

 
Outline of activities and 
facilities provided by 
organisation; Proposals 
for expansion of services; 
Perception of barriers to 
meeting any demand for 
expansion of activities and 
facilities. 

 
5/1/2005 

 
Town Hall, 
Chorley 

 
7. 

 
Mr P Round, Head of 
Sport, Leisure and 
Inclusion Services, 
Bolton Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

 
Evidence of activities 
provided in neighbouring 
district for purposes of 
comparison. 

 
17/02/2005 

 
Education and 
Cultural 
Department, 
Bolton MBC 

 
8. 

 
Mr J Glover, Chief 
Executive of Bolton 
Lads and Girls Club 

 
Details of the types of 
activity provided at the 
privately operated facility 
and an insight into the 
funding and management 
of the facility. 

 
17/02/2005 

 
Bolton Lads and 
Girls Club, Spa 
Road, Bolton 

 
9. 

 
A number of young 
persons interviewed by 
the Community 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel during its tour of 
selected locations 
within the Borough. 

 
Views on the adequacy of 
current facilities and 
amenities and aspirations 
for other activities and 
services. 

 
10/03/2005 

 
Visits to sites in 
Chorley, 
Adlington, Astley 
Village and 
Euxton. 

 

Page 41



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

APPENDIX D 

 

 
 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY INFORMATION CHECKLIST 
 

 
Name of Inquiry:  Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Body:  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel     
 

 
Ref. 

 
Information Required 

 
Source Details 

 
To be sourced 
by 

 
1 
 
 

Audit of current services, facilities 
and activities throughout the 
Borough 

Baseline survey of Borough 
Council’s Leisure and 
Cultural Services Unit, 
Lancashire County Council 
Youth and Community 
Services; Connexions; 
South Lancashire Arts 
Partnership; Parish 
Councils; Local Schools; 
Other Sports, Youth and 
Community organisations 
active in the Borough. 
Witness interviews. 

Head of Leisure 
and Cultural 
Services 

 
2 
 
 

Aspirations for improvement or 
expansion of activities and facilities 

Baseline survey outlined 
above, Questionnaire 
available on Council’s 
website aimed to target 
young people, parents and 
organisers of young 
people’s activities. 
Survey of Borough 
Councillors. 
Witness interviews. 
Site visits. 

Head of Leisure 
and Cultural 
Services/ 
Democratic 
Services Officer 

 
3 
 
 

Perception of barriers to meeting 
increasing demand for additional 
activities and facilities 

Baseline surveys and on-line 
questionnaires outlined 
above. 
Witness interviews. 
Site visits. 

Head of Leisure 
and Cultural 
Services/ 
Democratic 
Services Officer 

 
4 
 
 

Comparisons with ‘best practice’ 
authorities 

Site visits. Head of Leisure 
and Cultural 
Services/ 
Democratic  
Services Officer 

 
 

Page 42



   

ADMINGEN/88990AJS  

 
 
APPENDICES E - J ARE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION IN THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
SECTION 
 
(Copies will be available at the meeting) 
 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

B
U
S
I
N
E
S
S
 P
L
A
N
N
I
N
G
 

U
P
D
A
T
E
S
 

E
N
D
 O
F
 Y
E
A
R
 0
4
/0
5
 

   

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



Page 46



 
 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 U
p
d
a
te
s
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

B
U
S
IN

E
S
S
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 U

P
D
A
T
E
S
 

E
N
D
 O

F
 Y

E
A
R
 0

4
/0

5
 

 
  C
o
n
te

n
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 

   
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 
 

 
 

1
 -
 3
 

   
 

L
e
is
u
re
 a
n
d
 C
u
lt
u
re
  

 
 

 
4
 -
 7
 

  
 

Page 47



 
 

 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

B
U
S
IN

E
S
S
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 U

P
D
A
T
E
S
 

E
N
D
 O

F
 Y

E
A
R
 0

4
/0

5
 

     

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

Page 48



 
 

 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

 

E
C
O
N
O
M

IC
 R

E
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
IO

N
 U

N
IT

 
 

 

B
U
S
IN

E
S
S
 P

L
A
N
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 

 
E
N
D
 O

F
 Y

E
A
R
 U

P
D
A
T
E
 –

 A
S
 A

T
 3

1
 M

A
R
C
H
 2

0
0
5
 

 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV

E
 

M
E
M

B
E
R
: 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 W

IL
S
O
N
- 
E
C
O
N
O
M
IC
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 A
 L
O
W
E
- 
D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 (
H
IS
T
O
R
IC
 E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
) 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 M
 W

IL
S
O
N
- 
E
N
V
IR
O
N
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 S
A
F
T
E
Y
 (
D
E
R
E
L
IC
T
 L
A
N
D
 R
E
C
L
A
M
A
T
IO
N
) 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 C
 H
O
Y
L
E
- 
L
IF
E
 A
N
D
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 (
A
S
T
E
L
Y
 P
A
R
K
, 
W
E
S
T
 P
E
N
N
IN
E
 M
O
O
R
S
) 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 T
 B
R
O
W
N
- 
T
R
A
F
F
IC
 A
N
D
 T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
A
T
IO
N
 (
T
R
A
N
S
P
O
R
T
 S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
/ 
C
Y
C
L
IN
G
 

S
T
R
A
T
E
G
Y
) 

 
 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 H

E
A
D
: 

J
A
N
E
 M
E
E
K
- 
H
E
A
D
 O
F
 R
E
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
IO
N
 

 A
. 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 I
M

P
R
O

V
E
M

E
N
T
S
 

 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 I
M

P
R
O

V
E
M

E
N
T
 

P
R
O

G
R
E
S
S
 

R
E
V
IS

E
D
 D

A
T
E
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

 
 

 B
. 

B
U
D
G

E
T
 V

A
R
IA

T
IO

N
S
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 

Page 49



 
 

 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

 U
N
IT

: 
E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 B
. 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N
C
E
 I
N
D
IC

A
T
O

R
S
 

 
i)
 

B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

  
ii)
 

L
o
c
a
l 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
. 

 

Page 50



 
 

 

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

B
U
S
IN

E
S
S
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 U

P
D
A
T
E
S
 

E
N
D
 O

F
 Y

E
A
R
 0

4
/0

5
 

     

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

 
 

Page 51



 
 

  

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

 
 

L
E
IS

U
R
E
 A

N
D
 C

U
L
T
U
R
A
L
 S

E
R
V
IC

E
S
 U

N
IT

 
 

B
U
S
IN

E
S
S
 P

L
A
N
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 

 
E
N
D
 O

F
 Y

E
A
R
 U

P
D
A
T
E
 –

 A
S
 A

T
 3

1
 M

A
R
C
H
 2

0
0
5
 

 E
X
E
C
U
T
IV

E
 M

E
M

B
E
R
: 

C
O
U
N
C
IL
L
O
R
 C
A
T
H
 H
O
Y
L
E
, 
E
X
E
C
U
T
IV
E
 M
E
M
B
E
R
 F
O
R
 L
IF
E
 &
 L
E
IS
U
R
E
 

 
 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 H

E
A
D
: 

J
A
M
IE
 C
A
R
S
O
N
 

 A
. 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 I
M

P
R
O

V
E
M

E
N
T
S
 

 

S
E
R
V
IC

E
 I
M

P
R
O

V
E
M

E
N
T
 

P
R
O

G
R
E
S
S
 

R
E
V
IS

E
D
 D

A
T
E
 

 F
in
a
lis
e
 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 I
n
d
o
o
r 
L
e
is
u
re
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 
y
e
a
r,
 
b
u
t 

th
e
 
ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
 
fo
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
s
lip
p
e
d
 
in
to
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
. 

 M
id
-J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
5
. 

 B
. 

B
U
D
G

E
T
 V

A
R
IA

T
IO

N
S
 

  
V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 i
n
 y
e
a
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
  
F
in
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 w
it
h
in
 0
.4
%
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t.

Page 52



 
 

  

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

B
. 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N
C
E
 I
N
D
IC

A
T
O

R
S
 

  
i)
 

B
e
s
t 
V
a
lu
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

B
V
P
I 

R
E
F
 N

O
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N
C
E
 

2
0
0
3
/0

4
 

T
A
R
G

E
T
 

2
0
0
4
/0

5
 

A
C
T
U
A
L
 

2
0
0
4
/0

5
 

C
O

M
M

E
N
T
S
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
7
0
 (
a
) 

  
1
7
0
 (
b
) 

  
1
7
0
 (
c
) 

   
1
7
7
 

      
1
1
9
 

(C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r)
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
is
it
s
 
to
/u
s
a
g
e
s
 
o
f 
A
s
tl
e
y
 
H
a
ll,
 

p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
is
it
s
 
to
 
A
s
tl
e
y
 
H
a
ll,
 
p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
u
p
ils
 
v
is
it
in
g
 
A
s
tl
e
y
 
H
a
ll 

in
 

o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

(e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
) 

 %
 
o
f 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 
o
n
 
le
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

a
d
v
is
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 
th
e
 
Q
u
a
lit
y
 
M
a
rk
 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
t 
a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 l
e
g
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
. 

 %
 
o
f 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 c
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 r
e
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

(a
) 
S
p
o
rt
 &
 L
e
is
u
re
 

(b
) 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

(c
) 
M
u
s
e
u
m
s
 &
 G
a
lle
ri
e
s
 

(d
) 
T
h
e
a
tr
e
s
/c
o
n
c
e
rt
 h
a
lls
 

(e
) 
P
a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

2
3
0
 

  
1
2
3
 

  
1
,2
2
3
 p
u
p
ils
 i
n
 4
2
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

  
1
0
0
%
 

      
(N
B
 2
0
0
1
/0
2
) 

 
(a
) 
5
2
%
 

(b
) 
N
/A
 

(c
) 
5
2
%
 

(d
) 
5
2
%
 

(e
) 
6
8
%
 

1
4
6
 

  
6
4
 
  

1
,8
0
0
 p
u
p
ils
 i
n
 6
0
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 

  
1
0
0
%
 

        - 

2
6
8
 

  
2
4
7
 

  
2
3
1
1
 p
u
p
ils
 i
n
  

5
5
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

  
1
0
0
%
 

        
(a
) 
 6
5
%
 

(b
) 
 N
/A
 

(c
) 
 6
3
%
 

(d
) 
 5
8
%
 

(e
) 
 7
6
%
 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 o
f 
A
s
tl
e
y
 H

a
ll 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 p
ro
fi
le
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
H
o
rr
o
c
k
s
 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 

      
-         

A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

 

Page 53



 
 

  

 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 –
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 
0
4
/0
5
 

 
ii)
 

L
o
c
a
l 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

 

P
I 

R
E
F
 N

O
 

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
 

P
E
R
F
O

R
M

A
N
C
E
 

2
0
0
3
/0

4
 

T
A
R
G

E
T
 

2
0
0
4
/0

5
 

A
C
T
U
A
L
 

2
0
0
4
/0

5
 

C
O

M
M

E
N
T
S
 

L
C
S
 1
 

   
L
C
S
 2
 

  
L
C
S
 3
 

  
L
C
S
 4
 

   
L
C
S
 5
 

 
L
C
S
 6
 

      
L
C
S
 7
 

     
L
C
S
8
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
s
is
te
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
ir
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
/o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 b
id
s
) 

 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
s
is
te
d
 

w
it
h
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 

fu
n
d
in
g
 b
id
s
 

 %
 
o
f 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
s
s
is
te
d
 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 
w
it
h
 

a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 g
iv
e
n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
is
it
s
 t
o
/u
s
a
g
e
s
 o
f 
A
s
tl
e
y
 H
a
ll 

   N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
e
d
d
in
g
s
 a
t 
A
s
tl
e
y
 H
a
ll 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 
th
e
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 

a
re
 i
n
 u
s
e
: 

(a
) 
T
a
tt
o
n
 

(b
) 
A
s
tl
e
y
 V
ill
a
g
e
 

(c
) 
C
la
y
to
n
 B
ro
o
k
 

(d
) 
E
a
v
e
s
 G
re
e
n
 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
v
is
it
s
 t
o
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
s
: 

(a
) 
A
ll 
S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 

(b
) 
C
la
y
to
n
 G
re
e
n
 

(c
) 
B
ri
n
s
c
a
ll 

(d
) 
C
o
p
p
u
ll 

 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ro
u
n
d
s
 o
f 
g
o
lf
 p
la
y
e
d
 a
t 
D
u
x
b
u
ry
 

1
1
2
 

   
5
7
 
  

8
6
.4
%
 

  
2
3
,3
4
2
 

   
1
8
 
  

6
,8
8
4
 

(a
) 

2
,4
6
4
 

(b
) 

1
,7
2
7
 

(c
) 

  
 7
0
4
 

(e
) 
 

1
,9
8
9
 

 
8
1
3
,3
3
5
 

(a
) 

5
7
5
,2
0
1
 

(b
) 

1
6
6
,7
7
8
 

(c
) 

5
3
,1
0
9
 

(d
) 

1
8
,2
4
7
 

 
4
2
,2
8
2
 

1
1
2
 

   
5
7
 
  

9
0
%
 

  
1
4
,7
5
0
 

   
1
8
 
  

7
,1
1
4
 

(a
) 
 
2
,5
6
1
 

(b
) 
 
1
,7
7
1
 

(c
) 
  
 
  
 7
5
0
 

(d
) 
  
2
,0
3
2
 

 
8
1
3
,5
0
0
 

- - - -  
4
1
,5
0
0
 

1
1
7
 

   
6
1
 
  

8
7
.6
%
 

  
2
6
,9
6
5
 

   
1
8
 
  

7
,9
6
8
 

(a
) 
2
,4
8
6
 

(b
) 
1
,9
1
2
 

(c
) 
1
,4
4
5
 

(d
) 
2
,1
2
5
  

8
2
7
,9
6
6
 

(a
) 

5
9
3
,6
0
5
 

(b
) 

1
6
1
,8
9
8
 

(c
) 

 5
3
,8
7
9
 

(d
) 

 1
8
,5
8
4
 

 
3
3
,4
7
5
 

-    -   S
h
o
rt
 
o
f 
ta
rg
e
t,
 
b
u
t 
a
n
 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
2
0
0
3
/0
4
. 

 A
n
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 

in
 

s
p
e
c
ia
l 

e
v
e
n
ts
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 
h
o
u
rs
, 
h
a
s
 
re
s
u
lt
e
d
 

in
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
. 

 -   A
ll 
C
e
n
tr
e
s
 
p
e
rf
o
rm

e
d
 
w
e
ll 
a
g
a
in
s
t 

ta
rg
e
t,
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
s
 f
o
r 
e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

w
o
rk
 
to
 
c
o
m
p
ly
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
D
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

D
is
c
ri
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 A
c
t.
 

  In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
a
g
e
 i
n
 a
ll 
c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
a
p
a
rt
 

fr
o
m
 C
la
y
to
n
 G
re
e
n
. 

    E
x
tr
e
m
e
ly
 
w
e
t 

w
e
a
th
e
r 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 

E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
h
ip
s
 

h
a
v
e
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
w
 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
. 

 

Page 54



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/86459AJS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2005/06 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 
J 

1. Holding the Executive to Account OSC             

 Annual Budget/Council House Rents        3      

 Annual Budget Consultation      3  3      

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator          3    

ESP            
� 

Com SP            
�  Business Plan Updates 

Cust SP            
� 

 Business Plan Updates OSC            � 

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance)  �            

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

   3        
 

� 

 Housing Maintenance Budget       3       

 Corporate Building Maintenance & Repair 
Service (6 monthly update) 

    3      3 
  

2. Policy Development and Review              

 Other to be identified              

3. External Scrutiny/Community Concern Full 
Scrutiny Inquiry 

             

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ComSP             

Public Participation/Communication ComSP             

 One-Stop Shop CustSP             

LCC’s arrangement for the Scrutiny of health  CustSP             

 function - Periodic Review              

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ESP             

4.  Monitoring of Inquiries              

 Housing Maintenance Appointments System CustSP         �    

 Flooding, Flood Prevention and Contingency 
 Plan/Proposals 

ESP            � 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CustSP         �    

 Friday Street for the Chorley Town Centre Fair ComSP         �    

 Juvenile Nuisance  ComSP             

 Grass Cutting ESP            � 

5. Other              

 O & S Training Programme OSC   3      �    
              

 
OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ESP      -  Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 
ComSP -  Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel             CustSP  -  Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 55



 A
D
M
IN

G
E
N
/T
O
O
L
K
IT
/8
6
4
5
9
A
J
S
 

 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 T
o
p
ic
s
/I
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
d
 

 
R
e
f 

T
o
p
ic
/I
s
s
u
e
 T
it
le
 

D
a
te
 

In
c
lu
d
e
d
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

S
c
o
re
 

S
o
u
rc
e
 

B
ri
e
f 
D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

 
 F
u
ll
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 L
is
t 

 IE
G
 M

e
a
s
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

(C
u
s
t 
S
P
) 

  P
a
rk
w
is
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

    R
e
s
e
rv
e
 L
is
t 

    P
o
li
c
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t/
R
e
v
ie
w
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 L
is
t 

      R
e
s
e
rv
e
 L
is
t 

   

     2
6
/0
6
/0
3
 

   2
0
/0
1
/0
5
 

        

     4
 a
n
d
 4
 

   4
 a
n
d
 4
 

         

     O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 A
 

  O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 -
 2
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
5
 

       

     R
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 
O
 &
 S
 P
a
n
e
l 

   R
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
O
 &
 S
 P
a
n
e
l 

            

 

Page 56


